PALMER TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
GENERAL BUSINESS MEETING
MAY 10, 2010

A general business meeting of the Palmer Township Board of Supervisors was held on
Monday, May 10, 2010 at 7:00 p.m. in the Community Room of the Palmer Library with all
Supervisors in attendance: David Colver, Robert Lammi, Michael Mitchell, Ann-Marie Panella
and Robert Smith. Also in attendance were the Township Manager, Public Services Director,
Police Chief and Township Solicitor. Chris Baxter from the Morning Call represented the news
media. Chairman Colver convened the meeting and led those present in the Pledge to the Flag.

2. APPROVAL OF DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS MAY 3. 2010 AND MAY 10, 2010

INFORMATION

The report will be provided at the meeting.
DISCUSSION

On motion by Mitchell, seconded by Panella, and agreed by all, the Board approved the
disbursement of funds for May 3, 2010 and May 10, 2010.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES — APRIL 27, 2010

DISCUSSION

Lammi said at the bottom of page two the minutes talk about Mrs. Raub incorporating in
the developer agreements that the property owners understand the type of activities that can take
place on the neighboring farm. Lammi said it states “she sold the property to the developer.”
Lammi said that is not a correct statement and it should be removed from the minutes.

On motion by Lammi, seconded by Smith, and agreed by four, the Board approved the
minutes of April 27, 2010 with the above change. Panella abstained since she was absent at the
April 27, 2010 meeting.

4. CORN MAZE REQUEST AND DISCUSSION

INFORMATION

This item was on the last meeting agenda and was tabled for additional information to be
collected from the Solicitor and Fire Chief.

DISCUSSION

Colver said this item was discussed at our last meeting and the Board had some questions
they wanted to discuss with the township Fire Commissioner. Mr. Jeff Raub introduced Steve
Mills, from the Asteak Law Offices, Sean Hoffman from Farm and Family Insurance, Ted
Tereford from Albright Mill Pioneer Seed Company, who is the representative they will purchase
the corn from. Colver said there is no formal action required from this Board tonight. The item



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PAGE 2 MAY 10, 2010

will be heard at the Zoning Hearing Board meeting in June. Mr. Raub said it was brought up at
the last meeting about his grandmother having the verbiage in her property agreements. Mr.
Raub said one thing his grandmother was looking to preserve was the ability to continue to be
able to farm. Her objective was to preserve our rights as farmers and to clearly identify the fence
line of the property. As farmers we need to do different things these days — we are now growing
mums, pumpkins and sweet corn. This is what we have to do to continue to survive as farmers.
Mr. Raub said he spoke to the township Fire Commissioner, Delmar Grube, to make sure all fire
and safety issues were addressed. Mr. Raub said he is trained in CPR and safety and we will
have other employees trained as well.

Mr. Hoffman, Farm and Family Insurance, said as the insurance company insuring the
property owner we expanded our policies to give farmers flexibility to allow for corn mazes and
hay rides. Hoffman said from an insurance-end coverage is more curtailed to these uses. Colver
asked about previous claim experience. Mr. Hoffman said some slips and falls but you have that
no matter what type of business. Mr. Hoffman said they never had a fire but you have to
remember the corn they are using is still green. Lammi asked when the maze is built do you
make an inspection of it before people start visiting the maze. Mr. Hoffman said he will inspect
the risks and make any necessary suggestions. Mrs. Raub said we have done a lot of research to
make sure we have every duck in a row. Smith asked if the company that constructs the maze is
also insured. Mrs. Raub said yes, they have to be. Mr. Raub said the company does a GPS
design and then comes in and cuts the maze. Colver said it will rain at some point during this
event and he asked about tracking mud off the property. Mr. Raub said the property has a long
stone driveway out to Tatamy Road that would help take the mud off the tires and he said the
maze would not be open on rainy days.

Ted Tereford, Albright Mill Pioneer Seed Company, said they have selected a variety of
long season corn that will stay green and grow for a longer period of time. It stays green longer
than other corn would. Colver asked if the whole 50 acres was going to be the longer growing
corn. Mr. Raub said they thought it would be best to plant the whole 50 acres with this type of
corn. Colver asked about the perimeter of the maze. Mrs. Raub said there will be a break of
about 12 feet at the outside of the maze before anyone could enter the remaining cornfield. Mrs.
Raub said it will be well designated. Lammi asked if hay would be used inside the maze. Mrs.
Raub said no, only on the hayride wagon.

Supervisor Lammi said he had the Palmer Township Fire Commissioner call the state
Fire Commissioner because he wanted to know of prior experiences with any fires in mazes or
corn fields. Lammi said they spoke to a Fire Chief in Pennsylvania where a big corn maze is
held every year and they have had no problems. Lammi said he is aware of a lot of fire
companies that actually hold mazes as fundraisers for their departments. Lammi said he grew up
on a farm, he was in the insurance business for many years, and he doesn’t see any problem with
it. Mr. Raub said he also spoke to Don Rank from Paradise Township who has experience with a
successful corn maze and he said he would be willing to answer any questions the Board may
have.

Andrew Wolke, 21 Country Side Court, said he is concerned with the agri-tourism affect
turning into a carnival atmosphere. Wolke said he would agree to the maze if it was held on the
other side of Tatamy Road.



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PAGE 3 MAY 10, 2010

Fred Kunzman, 20 Country Side Court, said as residents we have a right to not put up
with the noise and pollution that will come with this event. Kunzman said if people throw trash,
it is going to end up on our properties. It’s too close to the neighbors; it’s only 500 feet from my

property.

Brenda Kunzman, 20 Country Side Court, said she wants to know how many corn mazes
are this close to housing developments. Kunzman said she has attended many mazes and they
are not within 500 feet of 400 houses. They are out in the middle of nowhere. Kunzman said
she wants to know who is going to be responsible. I want to know their evacuation plan.

Linda Demchak, 49 Water Wheel Lane, said she has to agree that it is too close to the
neighborhood.

Larry Cecio, 33 Country Side Court, said they gave us a lot of information on what they
are doing but I would feel better if the town is telling them what to do. What is the town going
to say — will they say how far the fire break needs to be. Colver said this is going to end up at
the Zoning Hearing Board meeting where all of that is going to be aired out. The Raub’s were
asking this Board if we would support the idea but it is a Zoning Hearing Board issue. Colver
said the Zoning Hearing Board will address all issues; like parking, if they can use hay, etc.

Gary Bossardet, 26 Country Side Court, said he comes from a family of farmers, and he
doesn’t take issue with anyone making a living off their property. Bossardet said he believes a
larger illustration of what this is going to look like would help the audience. Bossardet said if it
is a Zoning Hearing Board decision why would this Board want to get involved if you aren’t
going to make a decision. Colver said on occasion we get involved with a zoning issue if we
want to send our solicitor to a hearing indicating we are either for or against an issue. Colver
said this item was proposed to our Township Manager and he thought it should be brought to this
Board before going to zoning. Anckaitis said once the Zoning Hearing Board makes a decision
this Board cannot alter that decision. It’s a separate judicial body. Anckaitis said he had no
input from this Board but he told the Zoning Officer to tell the Raub’s that they might want to
consider coming here to see if this Board would support this idea. Bossardet said this Board
really has no real business on the merits of this proposition and bringing it before this Board — I
don’t see where it has a place. Anckaitis said they spent one hour at the last meeting and another
40 minutes tonight discussing this item. Anckaitis said he knew this was a bigger operation than
just a corn maze. Anckaitis said when you have a project like this that is going before the
Zoning Hearing Board there are a lot of details that need to be hashed out and that information
then needs to be given to the people that make the decision.

Mark Mitchell, 24 Country Side Court, said when we purchased our homes we wanted
the country living and atmosphere and I feel it would be adversely affected due to the proximity
of the project. Tunderstand their need to enhance their income but I would feel much more
comfortable if they proposed it on the other side of Tatamy Road.

Andrew Wolke, 21 Country Side Court, said there are 29 acres on the other side of
Tatamy Road, why don’t they do it there. Jeff Raub said he does not farm that side of the road —
it is his brother’s farm.



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PAGE 4 MAY 10, 2010

Anderson Raub, owner of the property, said his home is 520 feet from Tatamy Road.
That is a big buffer. This is for a six week time period. It is not going to be a carnival event.
Colver said there will be a list of conditions that the Zoning Hearing Board would attach to the
project, if it is approved.

Colver said this Board has three options; to support, deny, or remain neutral. Colver said
the Zoning Hearing Board exists for a reason. Colver said we have some concerns that we feel
need to be shared with the Zoning Hearing Board. Lammi said we have heard the residents
concerns as well as his concerns and they will be addressed at the Zoning Hearing. Lammi said
he doesn’t feel this Board needs to give any decision for or against the project. Let the Zoning
Hearing Board hear it and make their decision. Lammi said he knows all issues will be
addressed by that board. Smith said initially he thought it would be nice for the township kids to
have a maze to visit. Smith said he thinks it is great that we heard these people that came out in
support and against the maze and he suggested they also attend the Zoning Hearing Board
meeting to share their concerns. Panella said she was absent at the last meeting but she
remembers when Mr. Tuskes came in front of us years ago to build the development, I told him
the first time I hear complaints about the smell of manure, I would be questioning him. Panella
said in order for them to maintain their farm sometimes they have to be creative. Both sides
need to look out for each other. Mitchell said he believes everyone needs to work together on
this and work together to make it work.

Colver asked Attorney Mills if he filed the Zoning Hearing Board application. Mills said
they would be filing it tomorrow. Mills said they are seeking relief for temporary use by special
exception, limits of temporary use to six days within a 60 day period, and permitted use by right
as an accessory use and under the Right to Farm Act.

Ray Mack, President, Northampton Farm Bureau, said we are seeing the economics of
farming changing all over the state of Pennsylvania. Mack said the average farmer is 50 years
old. There are not many young fellows like Mr. Raub willing to put in the hard work to be a
farmer. Mack said in the next ten years you won’t be seeing any of these farms. Lammi said the
Lehigh Valley Planning Commission, which he is a commissioner on, is struggling with this all
the time. Lammi said one thing people can do is go out and support the local farmers by buying
their produce —it’s important. Colver confirmed that this Board is not going to weigh in either
way on the issue and we will allow the Zoning Hearing Board to make their decision.

Solicitor Bruno told the Board members that once the application is filed if there are any
concerns by the Board they have the right to request that the Zoning Officer convey those
concerns to the Zoning Hearing Board.

5. FIRE TRUCK LOAN PROPOSAL DISCUSSION

INFORMATION

Letters were sent to Wachovia Bank, PNC Bank, TD Bank, Lafayette Ambassador and
KNBT. The township received responses from Lafayette Ambassador and PNC bank. The
Board needs to approve/disapprove the fire truck loan.

DISCUSSION



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PAGE § MAY 10, 2010

Colver said as part of our budget process last year we included a package to purchase a
new fire truck. We went out for request for proposals to five banks and received two responses.
Anckaitis said we only received responses from Lafayette Ambassador and PNC Bank. The
proposal from PNC was $235 less a year. Normally I would recommend going with the lowest
payment, but PNC is also requiring a depository relationship. Therefore, I recommend we go
with Lafayette Ambassador who currently holds all our accounts.

Colver made a motion; it was seconded by Lammi, to approve the fire truck loan for
$475,000 through Lafayette Ambassador Bank at a fixed rate of 3.63% for 84 months for a
monthly payment of $6,423.04. Bruno recommended the motion include conditioned upon
authorized approval from DCED. Colver and Lammi amended their motion, and it was agreed
by all.

6. ROAD MATERIAL BID AWARDS

INFORMATION

The Director of Public Services will bring the results of the bids to the meeting along
with recommendations. The bids were opened on May 7. The Board needs to
approve/disapprove the bid recommendations.

DISCUSSION

Tom Adams, Director of Public Services, distributed and reviewed the bid information
with the Board.

On motion by Lammi, seconded by Smith, and agreed by all, the Board awarded the bids
received on Friday, May 7, 2010, as recommended by the Public Services Director to the

following low bidders:

For Road Materials and Crushed Limestone:

F.O.B DELIVERED
Eastern Industries —
3A Modified 6.25/Ton (N)
#57 2B 8.25/Ton (N) 11.30/Ton (N)
#3 6.25/ton (N) 9.30/Ton (N)
Gabion 11.25/Ton (N)
ABE Materials —
Cold Patch 85.00/Ton 88.50/Ton
#2 Anti-Skid 8.25/Ton 11.75/Ton
Superpave 9.5mm Wearing* 52.00/Ton 56.90/Ton
Superpave 19.0mm Wearing* 46.25/Ton 51.15/Ton
Superpave 25.0mm Binder* 43.00/Ton 47.90/Ton
Superpave 25.0mm Base* 43.00/Ton 47.90/Ton
Superpave 12.5mm Wearing** 52.00/Ton 56.90/Ton



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PAGE 6

Superpave 9.5mm Wearing™®* 52.00/Ton
Superpave 25.0mm Binder** 43.00/Ton
Superpave 19.0mm Binder** 46.40/Ton

*0.0to 0.3 mil ESALS
**(0.3 to 3.0mil ESALS

FABW or FJ1C 55.00/Ton
FJ1 62.00/Ton
UPM Cold Patch 95.75/Ton

Stockertown Construction —

1B AASHTO 9.50/Ton
#1 AASHTO 8.40/Ton
2A 5.45/Ton
3A Modified

Screenings (#10) 8.50/Ton
Rip-Rap — R4 11.50/Ton
Rip-Rap — RS 12.75/Ton
Rip-Rap — R6 12.75/Ton
Surge Pile 7.75/Ton
Gabion

Construction Equipment rental hourly rate (with operator):

EQUIPMENT RENTAL
M. D. Hobel Excavating, Inc.

953 Cat 34,000 Ib. - $110.00/Hr.
963 Cat 44,000 Ib. - $130.00/Hr.

MAY 10, 2010

56.90/Ton
47 90/Ton
51.30/Ton

59.90/Ton
66.90/Ton
99.25/Ton

13.00/Ton
11.90/Ton

8.95/Ton

9.23/Ton
12.00/Ton
15.75/Ton
18.55/Ton
18.55/Ton

11.15/Ton

14.70/Ton

Hydraulic Excavator —322 Cat 52,000 Lb. - $120.00/Hr.

Hydraulic Excavator 44,000 Lb. w/Compaction Plate - $120.00/Hr.

Hydraulic Excavator 44,000 Lb. w/Hammer - $175.00/Hr.

Soil Compactor — 533 Cat 84” - $85.00/Hr.

450 Deere Track Dozer - $79.00/Hr.

420D Cat Backhoe Loader - $74.00/Hr.

Machine Moves - $95.00/Hr.

Construction Equipment rental hourly rate (with operator):



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Tandem Dump Truck
Triaxle Dump Truck

23,600 Lb. 943 Track Loader

28,840 Lb. Hydraulic Excavator
54,434 Lb. Hydraulic Excavator
63,229 Lb. Hydraulic Excavator

D4 GXL Track Dozer

Machine Move - $110.00 Per hour

PAGE 7

EQUIPMENT RENTAL

A.J. TESTA, INC.

HOURLY
$ 60.00
$ 70.00

$125.00
$125.00
$155.00
$165.00

$ 85.00

Construction Equipment rental hourly rate (with operator):

Case 160CX Excavator

Machine Move - $130.00 per move

EQUIPMENT RENTAL

PAN COMPANIES, INC.

HOURLY

$125.00

Note: Minimum four (4) hour charge for equipment rental

Construction Equipment rental hourly rate (without operator):

MAY 10, 2010

605C Track Loader (1.63 cu yd)

655C Track Loader (2.35 cu yd)

755D Track Loader (3.14 cu yd)

120C Excavator (29,000 1b)

160C/D Excavator (40,000 Ib)

DAILY WEEKLY MONTHLY
$594.00 $1,737.00 $5,202.00
$693.00 $2,025.00 $6,075.00
$738.00 $2,223.00 $6,660.00
$460.00 $1,278.00 $3,780.00
$477.00 $1,404.00 $4,122.00

200C/D Excavator (50,000 Ib)



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PAGE 8 MAY 10, 2010

$567.00 $1,710.00 $5,058.00
240D Excavator (54,700 Ib)

$675.00 $1,971.00 $5,886.00

DAILY WEEKLY MONTHLY
270D Excavator (63,500 Ib)

$747.00 $2,223.00 $6,363.00
450J Dozer

$369.00 $1,071.00 $2,754.00
650J Dozer

$441.00 $2,826.00 $3,204.00
410J Backhoe

$306.00 $882.00 $2,655.00

160C/D Excavator w/Hydraulic Tamper Plate
$711.00 $2,016.00 $5,778.00

160C/D Excavator w/3000 Ib. rating Hydraulic Hammer
$999.00 $2,826.00 $8,280.00

Trucking cost will be a maximum of $300 for non-permit equipment and
$400 for equipment requiring hauling permits

Paving Crew with equipment (per specifications) hourly rate:

IR PF-2181 Paver with Operator
CAT CB214-D Roller with Operator
IR DD90 Roller with Operator

One (1) experienced Screed Operator
Two (2) Laborers

$600.00 per hour
Machine Moves — Per Move - $130.00

PAN Companies, Inc. was the sole bidder, but their bid matched last years bid award hourly rate,
which was awarded to PAN Companies, Inc.

Concrete work:
C & D Contractor & Sons, Inc., Stroudsburg, PA:
Rolled Concrete Curbing — 300 Lineal Feet (more or less) —
$29.00 per Lineal Foot

Horizontally Rolled Concrete Curbing — 20 Lineal Feet (more or less) —
$30.00 per Lineal Foot



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PAGE 9 MAY 10, 2010

Concrete Sidewalk — 1,000 Sq. Ft. (more or less) - $7.00 per sq. ft.
Concrete work:
Northeast Concrete of Stroudsburg, PA:
Concrete Curbing — 1,000 Lineal Feet (more or less) Stand Up Formed - $20.50

per Lineal Foot

Slip Formed Concrete Curbing — 1,000 Lineal Feet (more or less) —
$23.00 per Lineal Foot

Delivered concrete:
Casilio Concrete:
4,000 PSI #8 Slipform Concrete — 20 Cubic Yards - $87.00/Cubic Yard
3,500 PSI Concrete — 50 Cubic Yards - $82.00/Cubic Yard

7. VILLAGES AT MILL RACE, PHASE 3, STREET LIGHT RESOLUTION

INFORMATION

The Board needs to approve/disapprove the resolution.
DISCUSSION

On motion by Lammi, seconded by Smith, and agreed by all, the Board approved the
street light resolution.

8. PROPOSAL FOR FAIRVIEW PARK SOFTBALL FIELD LIGHTING

INFORMATION

A total of $11,250 was allocated in the 2010 park and recreation development budget for
this project. The Board needs to decide if they want to proceed with the project; select whether
to illuminate the field to a high school standard (50/30 foot-candles) or recreational standard
(30/20 foot-candles); and discuss budgeting options to make up for an anticipated shortfall in
matching Palmer AA funding.

DISCUSSION

Smith said this field is an existing softball field and last year we discussed moving the
field 25 feet away from the road and into the open area. Last year we also replaced the backstop
and fence line. Smith said it was discussed that if we had lighting for multi-level uses it could
prevent us from having to go out and build additional fields in the township. Smith said this
field had lights years ago so there are existing poles and electrical wiring. Smith said we got two
proposals: one for recreation ball field lighting and then lighting for high school level games.
Smith said he recommends we light it at the recreation level. Smith said the intent was to go to



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PAGE 10 MAY 10, 2010

the Athletic Association (AA) for 50% of the costs but he has not yet done that. Smith said he
thinks this needs to go to the Recreation Board first. Smith said he feels we should wait until
next year to start the project which will allow us time to go to the Recreation Board and AA to
see about funding. Smith said $11,250 was put in this year’s budget and if we don’t get any
money from the AA we could budget the remaining amount in next year’s budget. Colver said
he feels the lights would need to be cut off at 9:30/10:00 p.m. at night since it’s in a residential
neighborhood. The Board agreed with no action required tonight.

9. OTTEN FENCE AGREEMENT

INFORMATION

The owner of 3 Crossing Court (private street off of Stones Crossing) wants to install a
fence in a township drainage easement. The Board needs to approve/disapprove the fence
request.

DISCUSSION

On motion by Mitchell, seconded by Lammi, and agreed by all, the Board approved the
fence agreement for 3 Crossing Court.

10. PUBLIC COMMENT

Frank Ferraina, Brentwood Avenue, said he had three items to discuss. First, there used
to be a do not enter sign at 25™ Street at Rudy’s Car Wash. My opinion is it is a dangerous
situation for people going south on 25™ Street and people going north on 25™ Street. Second, the
new traffic light on William Penn Highway and Milford Street, when traveling west on William
Penn there are overhead signs but there are no overhead signs going east and the roadway
markings are deceiving. Colver said that is a Penndot road. Third, Ferraina said he would like to
remind this board to hold off on any kind of expenditure spending. Ferraina showed seven pages
of sheriff’s sales that were recently in the newspaper. Ferraina said some of these people have
had their homes for 30 years and now can’t afford the taxes. I think it’s terrible. I’'m spending
$4,600 a year on taxes. Ferraina said anything you can do to hold down expenses will help.
Colver said he likes to point out to people that of your $4,600 taxes - $400 of that is Palmer
Township’s tax. Ferraina said it doesn’t matter who gets the money, I only have so much money
to give. Lammi said we also have to be careful that we don’t let the township collapse as far as
keeping up with road work, maintenance and equipment.

11. REPORTS

Solicitor

e Bruno had a pre-security construction agreement prepared for the land owner related
to the Woodmont project. Bruno said the developer received preliminary land
approval for the project but they are not ready to enter into a land development
agreement until the plan is ready to record. Bruno said Palmer L.P. is requesting to
be able to move forward with work on the property. Bruno said he has the pre-
security construction agreement, with money placed in escrow, with appropriate



